INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

VLR~ h/nj13  NRAP- 10f18/et

SR { J /

Form 10-300 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE:

ev. 6-72 TIONAL FARK $ R ..

{Rev ) NA NA ARK SERVI|CE Vlr’;‘llnla

COUNT Y-
NMATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

Yorlk

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM T FORNPS USE ONLY

ENTRY DATE

(Type all entries - complete applicable sections)

palhid
C OMMON::

Yorktown Historiec District

ANO/OR HISTORIC:

STREET AND NUMBER:

See continuation sheet

CITY OR TOWN: CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT:
Yorktown First, Theomas N. Downing
STATE cope |[COUNTY- cooe
51 York P 199
3 B i i r : ; S : i S R e
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
OWNERSH!IP STATUS
(Check One) v TO THE PUBLIC
[X] District [J Building O PU|7|(C Public Aequisition: &] Occupied Yes;
[ Site O Steueture [} Private {J In Precess [ Unoccupied U Ressricted
O Object E Both () Being Considered [ Preservation work D§ Unrestricted
in progress D No

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

{J Agricultural Government XJ Park 1 Transportation J Comments
{1 Commercial [J industrial X Private Residence 3] Other (Specity)
{3 Educational J Military ) Religious town

[3 Entortainment X Museum {J Scientific

RTY

ATINQ 3SN SdN 404

OWNER'S NAME <\ n
| 5
Multiple ownership 3
STREET AND NUMBER: .
H-
o]
CITY OR TOWN: STATE: ~oD¥F 5
_ Vireinia
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF CEEDS, ETC: < n
o 2
York County Court House B2
STREET AND NUMBER: ~ 3
CITY QR TOWN: STATE copE
Yo
ETE; g
1T = . - . , 4
Historic American Buildings 2
DATE OF SURVEY:“EQQ’% _ 'IQQB Q Federol W\\ C'vvnfy Z
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS: \\ (SR s )(\\ g
1= w
|- Library of Congres: o A m&\ ) m
STREET AND NUMBER: = - I)?}'f. il
' &t’:‘;‘:-!, ‘3 Y
CITY OR TOWN: I ﬂrz'/’/&)
Washington om0t " 11 |2
M g 7
Migg, S 0> .




\ Ona)
|E}\ Exeellont £ Good [T] Fair [ Dereriorated {-} Ruins (73 Unexposad
aewa :
y ] (Check One} {Chock One)
N‘AT IONA L ':~7" K Alterad (73 Unalterad T Moved X Criginal Site

AT TAs ;
p'éé’é‘ﬁfdiﬁu;:,{{ﬁ, BENT AND ORIGINAL {1 known) PHYSICAL ARREARANCE

v
";?%ﬁﬂgitﬁbugh the quiet rural aspect of Yorktown today contrasts

the village retalns many of its elghteenth century buildings and

ﬁw%ﬁe busy commercial community of the elghteenth century,

features., In addition most of the origilnal lot lines lald out
on the bluffs in 1691 and at the base of the bluffs in 1788 re-
main. The origlinal main street is lined with substantial brick

and frame eighteenth century dwellings and some modern recor-
structions,

&t the west end of Maln Street, there are several recon-
structlons. The brick.court house, the fifth to stand on Lot
24, was built in 1955 in colonial style. The Swan Tavern across
the street from the court house, originally bullt in 1722, was
destroyed in 1862 and reconstructed in 1930, The frame five~bay
building is covered with white clapboards, has a brick foundatiof,
clipped gables, hipped dormers and interilor end chimneys. The
reconstructed Medlcal Shop originally bullt in the mid-eighteenth
century stands across the street from the Swan Tavern. The
three-bay frame structure rests on a brick foundatlion and 1s
covered with beaded white clapboards. It has a steeply pltched
gable roof and an interior-end chlmney.

Grace Churech, on Lot 35, north east of the Court House, and
already on Natilonal Reglister of Historiec Places, is one of the
few surviving colonial structures built of marl, although these
marl walls were covered with stucco In the mid-nineteenth century.
Bullt between 1696 and 1700 the rectangular bullding, 55 feet 9
inches by 28 feet 8 inches, recelved a 29 foot north wing in the
elghteenth century. The church was gutted by fire in 1814, but
the main pertion was restored in 1848. The belfry, western
doorway and cilrcular window date from a 1926 renovation,

South of Grace Church on Lot 36 stands the Somerwell House,
thought to have been bullt prior to 1707 by Mungo Somerwell.
The house was later part of the Lightfoot family holdings. The
three-pay brick building l1s laid in Flemish bond with irregular
glazing on the south sectlon and regular glazing on the north
*T' wing. The house has exterior-snd chimneys, a modillion £
cornice, a steeply piltched roof and gabled dormers. The opening
on the south front have been altered, but the door and window
framesg are old. The windows on the east and west ends have
segmental arches. The west chimney, the dormers and the nine~
over-nine sash are modern.

The Thomas Pate House on Lot 42 just to the east of the
Somerwell House was bullt between 1699 and 1703 by Thomas Pate,
the ferryman and ordinary keeper at York Ferry. Later in the
eighteenth century the house was owned by Cole Digges and hils
children. The four-bay whitewashed ell-shaped brlck structure

is 1ald in Plemish bond. Three gabled dormers open on the south

gslope of the roof, one on_the eastern and th on the western slope
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of the ell wing. The bullding orilginally had exterlor end chimney
but the western stack has been altered to allow a window in the
gable, and the eastern chimney has become an interior one. A
modillion cornice is found at the roofline. The house was ex-
tenslvely remodelled 1n 1925,

Across the Maln Street from the Thomas Pate House 1s the 014
Customs House on Lot 43, built by Richard Ambler, the customs
collector, and used by him as a store house. The rectangular twos
story brick building 1s lald in Flemish bond with glazed headers
and has a belt course of three courses of corbelled brick. The
building has a steeply pitched hipped roof covered with slate, a
modillion cornice and an Interlor-end chimney with a corbelled
cap.on the south slde. The lower story windows and the doors
have segmental arches; the second story windows have flat arches.
All the windows have agrchitrave trim,blinds amd nine-cver-nine
sash. A brick wall laild in Plemish bond encircles the large yard,

The major remalning house in Yorktown 1ls the Nelson House.
It was built on Lot 52 between 1711 and 1740 either by Thomas
"Scotch Tom" Nelson, progenitor of thls well-known family in
Virginla or by his son, Willlam., It remalined in the Nelson family
until 1t was purchased as the nucleus of York Hall estate by
Captain George Preston Blow in 1914, The Nelson House has been
part of Colonial Historical Natlonal Park since 1968. The Nelson
House 1s a rectangular, two-story brick house, five bays wide
(on the north facade) and three bays deep, wlth a generously
proportioned dentil cornlce, a broad gable roof with pediments on
the ends and two interlor chimneys with corbelled caps. The
house has a Tine gauged-brick water table and belt course, The
corners are quolned In stone; the window sllls, lintels and key-
stones are also 1In stone. The original center doorway has simple
gauged and rubbed brick plers, and a triangular pediment of rubbed
and molded brick, however the elaborate west doorway is modern.
The south slde has only four bays and the door is off-center.
The large hipped dormers were added in 1920,

The floor plan has a central hall with the smaller two rooms
on the east separated by a small stalr and two large square rooms
are on the west. Thias plan 1s repeated on the second floor. The
entrance hall ls paneled above and below the molded chalir-rall,
and there 1is a fully developed cornice. The stair, ascending
in three easy flights, retains its original treads, risers and
stringer., Although all the rooms are paneled, the northeast room
is the most elaborate. ''he walls are not only paneled, but are
marked off by a medified Corinthian order, womewhat like Plate
XXV in Batty Langley's Bullder's Director. The order 1s composed
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"on the south slope. Two exterlor-end chimneys are T-shaped. The

 tyim frames the doorway with its rectangular transom consisting
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th§' fﬁgle bands of tall acanthus leaves, Windows, doors and
mantel are framed by thls order, The marble mantel, as wilth all
the others in the house, 1s a copy of the original. In the north-
west room, fluted pllasters (apparently Doric, although the capitd
have been removed) flank the windows, doors and mantel,

Acreoss the cross street from the Nelson House on Lot 56 is

the Sesslons~-Shleld House built in the last years of the seventeer]

century by Thomas Sesslons. The rectangular five-=bay brick
dqwelling 1s laid 1In Flemlsh bond and has a clipped gable roof,
Five hipped dormers open on the north slope of the roof and three

original modillion cornlce is found at the roofline and the first
floor windows retain original trim and nine-over-nine sash, as
do the second floor end windows, The doermer trim and sash are
modern. Segmental arches mark the end windows and basement window
The front and back porches and the eastern frame wing are nineteer
century addltlons., On the interior, the filrst floor rooms featurd
chair ralls and cornlces, but the distinctive feature In the
central hallway 1s the arch with a fluted keystone, fluted
pllasters and a paneled spandrel.

North of the Sesslons-Shleld Heuse across Main Street on Lot
77 stands the Dudley Digges House bullt for Digges about 17585,
Digges 1lnherited the property from his father, and expanded 1t by
purchasing the adjolning lots (76 and 79) as locations for out-
bulldings. The Digges House l1s considered an outstandlng example
of the mid-eighteenth century one-and-one -~half story house in
Virginla. One of the few frame bulldings surviving in Yorktown,
the filve-bay house has & modlllion cornice and twe interlor-end
chimneys with corbelled caps. Filve gabled dormers plerce the
north and south slope of the roof, which as a slight kick at the
eaves. The nlne-over-nlne sash 1n the scuth facade and the east
and west ends 18 original, however the dormer four-over-four sash
and the slx~-over-six sash In the gables are modern. Architrave

of four panes and the windows.

The floor plan shows a central hall plan with two rooms, each
having a corner fireplace, on elther side of the hall. 1In the
hall, a vertically paneled wainscoatlng and a wooden molded
cornice are employed. The two-run opensstring stalr wlth a molded
handraill, turned balusters and ornamental brackets 1s set back in-

to the northeast corner of the hall. The southwest room 1s fully |
paneled with vertical panels and features an arch wlth a keystone|

as a doorway in the north wall., Many of the original slx-paneled
doors remain 1n the house.

is
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Two houses, the Edmund Smith House and the Ballard House,
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stand on the c¢cross street east of the Nelson House, Nelson Street
The Edmund Smith House on Lot 53 was built by Edmund Smith in
1751 for his daughter, Mildred, who married David Jameson. This
five~bay brick dwelling lald in Flemish bond with glazed headers
originally fronted on the street. When 1t was converted into a
guest house for the York Hall estate early in this century, the
entrance was changed to the garden front, and the former street
entrance was made intc a window. &t the time of the renovatlon,
two gabled dormers were added to the two already opening on the
west slope of the roof, thereby matching the four origilnal
dormers on the street front., The windows are marked by segmental
arches and stone sills and have archiltrave trim and nine-over-
nine sash., The stacks of the two exterior end chimneys are
31lghtly removed from contact wilith the house.

South of the Edmund Smith House on Lot 54 is the Ballard
House built by Captain John Ballard by 1744. The five-bay
rectangular frame structure ls covered wlth beaded whlte clapboard
The exterior-end chimney of the south end has i1ts stack set out
From contact with the gable, although the north chimney is within
the frame of the house. Four gabled dormers open on the east sloj
of the steeply pltched roof, and three on the west slope. A
molded cornice 1s employed on the exterior. The doorway in the

of the doorway. The first fleoor windows have nine-cver-nine sash
and the dormers have six-~over-gix.

The recconstructed Archer House stands under the hill on the
water front. Bullt by Thomas Archer 1n the eighteenth century,
the structure was destroyed by {ire in 1814,  The present frame
rectangular two-bay house wlth two gabled dormers 1in each slope
of the roef 1s hullt on the foundations of the earller structure,

Extenzlve remalns of Wllliam Rogers pottery kiln have been
located on the egst slde of Head Street, southwest of the Nelson
House. This local industry produced good quality stonewares and
coarse earthenwares in the second quarter of the elghteenth centun

Governor Geooch referred teo Rogers in letters of the 1730's
to the English Board of Trade as the "poor potter", but historical
resegrch and archaecloglcal excavation have determined that hils
pettery operation was large and successful,

A pumber of eighteenth century house sltes have potential
for archaecloglcal examination. In addition tc many small and
medium sized structures, there were three maJor brick residences
that have been destroyed. The Secretary Thomas Nelson House,
stood on Main Street Jjust east of the town limits and was reduced

street facade 1s off center to the south; three bays extend northi

5.
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was finally convinced to abandon hls home when his body servant
"had his brailns dashed out by a cannon ball while he stood by his
side." Foundations of the Secretary Nelson house have been partly
excavated. A large H-shaped house on lots 46, 47, 84, and 85
gcross from the Governor Nelson House was the home of Willliam
Nelscn, President of the Councll. The house was lost in an 1814
fire that destroyed much of the town., Its foundatlons remain
below ground, and excavablon would provide Informatlon about its
Interesting plan. A 1754 sketch shows the Lightfoot House, at
the west end of the town., It was an lmposing two story hip roof
structure, with an appearance simllar to Westover and Carters
Grove. The building's plan would be valuable for comparative
evidence, but archaeoclogical remains of the house are belleved to
have been destroyed by modern constructlon on the site.

A Tew miles east of Yorktown 1ls the Moore House, owned in
1781 by Augustine Moore., Bullt about 1725, the house 1s restored
to 1t Revolutionary condition, when it served as the meetlng placse
for the representatives of the three armies, Here the Articles
of Capitulation, signed by the commanding officers on October 19th
were drawn up. The frame flve-bay rectangular house wilth beaded
white clapboard has a hlp-on-gambrel roof and a modilllion cornice.
The north slope of the roof is broken by flve hilpped dormers, the
gouth by three, The two brilck exterior chlmneys are T-shaped.
Nine-over-nine sash 1s employed In the first {loor windows, and
six-over-gix in the dormers, The floor plan has a central hall
with two rooms to the west and one large room to the east. A
two-run closed-string stair ascends on the east slde of the hall,
A chaipr-rall 1s employed in the first floor rcoms, and the mantels]
have plain friezes and shelves supported by simple pilasters.
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STATEMENT OF SIGMNIFICANCE

Yorktown was established by the Virginia Port Act in 1661
on the land of BenJamln Read, part of the Captain Nilcholas
Martiau tract whichpgg des cended through the distaff slde to
Read. The Port Act sought to foster urban development in
Virginla and cone of 1ts measures specifled the procurement of
fif'ty acres to serve as a port for York County. MaJor Lawrence
Smith surveyed the fifty acres and lald out eighty-five half-
acre lots on the bhluffs above the river, On the original plat,
survlving among the York County records, a principle street
(Main) running parsllel to the river wa®s Interzected by seven
cross streets. The original street and lot lines remaln today.
The lots were lald out on the bluffs above the river, but leff
a strip of land, "a Common Shore of no value" between the town
and the river., In thls area wharves, stores, lodglngs and a
conaiderable business development grew up along Water Street.
Although this dilstrlet was brought into the town in 1738, it
remained commons land (as does the beach today) untill 1t was
surveyed for lots in 1738.

For much of the eighteenth century, Yorktown reigned as a
busy commercial town and port. The excellent harbor In the
York River, and the fine gquality of the tobacco raised on the
surrounding plantations combined to make Yorktown one of the
most important tobacco ports., Yorktown reached the peak of 1ts
growth and prosperlty about 1750, although it continued a busy
commercial life for another twenty-five or thirty years. Rival
points of trade claimed much of the town's buslness, the center
of tobacco moved southwest as the soll of the nelghboring
plantations wore out, and these were the harbingers of decline
even before the siege of 1781 laid waste to much of the town.
Yorktown did not recover from the effects of the slege, 1t
ceased to be a commercial center, population dropped, and a
qulet rural village resulted,

At the height of 1ts prosperity, Yorktown's population
probably never exceeded three thousand. A number of prosperous
families who were promlnent in the affalrs of the colony lived
there. Among the more famous of these were the Nelson family
who produced Willllam, President of the Councll and acting

governor, Thomas, Deputy Secretary of the Colony for many years
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The Colonlal Natlonal Historical Park Yorktown portion

including Yorktown, the Moore House, the Battlefield, the
surrender Ground, Commanders' Headquarters, and cemeteriles.

Historle American Bulldings Survey Inventory
1959 Federal
Library of Congress
Washington, D. C.
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an actlve supporter of the revolutionary cause.

Today Yorktown is princlipally remembered for its part in the
culmination of the American Revolutlon., Although as early as
1775 Governor Dunmore had stored supplles and later lived aboard
his warshlp in Yorktown harbor, the area saw 1llttle actlon untll
Cornwallis entered the town in August, 1781, Here he prepared to

the combined American and French. forces under Washington and
Rochambeau. The French fleet under the Comte de Grasse defeated
the British off the capes of the Chesapeake in early September
and were thus masters of the bay and river entrances. Gradually
Cornwallls was forced to pull his lines in closer to Yorktown.
The Americans and French constructed several siege llnes as they
pushed Cornwallils in on the town. By October 17th the town and
the British troops had been under incegsant artlllery fire for
elght days and they were surrounded at close range. Rellefl had
not come and the Amerilcans and French had superiocr forces,
Cornwgllis' position was untenable, he could not fire a single
gun, thus surrender was the only alternative. On the 19th of
October, Cornwallis signed the Articles of Capitulatlon, drafted
the day before at the Moore House, and the Britilsh troops marched
to SBurrender Field and stacked thelr arms.

After the Slege of 1781, Yorktown settled into the role of
a rural community, although 1t retained 1ts position as the York
County seat. In 1814, a fire began along the waterfront in
Yorktown-under-the-hl1ll, spread into the town and destroyed many
0ld colonial buildings., The next major event in the town's hilsto
oceurred when Lafayette was feted there during hls tour of Amerilc
in 1824, During the War Between the States, there was a second
slege of Yorktown in 1862, a minor engagement; some of the vislbl
fortifications date from this slege. The victory at Yorktown was
extensively observed during the Centennlal Celebration in 1881,
and at the Sesquicentennial Celebration in 1931,

town was an important port and an active commercial community,
The substantial houses of the early merchants were followed by
fine mansions as the merchants increased thelr wealth. A number
of eighteenth century houses remaln today, and these with the
Main Street reconstructlons combine to give the atmosphere of an
elghteenth century village along the original streets. The small
brick and Frame houses are excellent examples of the typlcal earl
and mid-eighteenth century town dwellings. The Nelson House 18 3§

Digges family whose scion Dudley was in the House of Burgesses and

awalt re-enforcements from New York, and here he was surrounded by

In the first three-guarters of the elghteenth century, York-j

1324
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distingulshed example of an Early Georglan pedimented gable-end
houge, and retains most of the orilginal interlor trim. Yorktown
galns 1ts greatest glory from having been the site of the
culmlination of the American Revolutlon. The Battlefield sites,

Headquarters, Surrender Fleld and other lntegral parts of the

wartime Yorktown are contained within the Colonisl Historical
National Park, T
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The Edmund Smith House, Washington, D.C.: Office of Archaeology

7 and HIsToric Preservation, 1969, :

Dudley Digges House and Dependencles, Washington, D.C.: Of'fice off
Archaeology and Historic Preservatlon, 1969,

Harold A. Larrabie, Decision at the Chesapeake, New York: Bramhalll
House, 1964, T -
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